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UNITED STATES QOF AMERICA,

MARIA SANCHEZ,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

October 2008

Plaintiff,

V.

Defendant.

T St e e Ml M e et Sl N st vt St ol et S et e Y o

The Grand Jury charges:

COUNT

[18 U.S8.C

A. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

Grand Jury

CR No. 08-113(B)-GW

[18 U.S.C. § 371: Conspiracy;
18 U.S.C. § 1343: Wire Fraud;
18 U.S.C. § 1957: Engaging In
Monetary Transactions In
Property Derived From Specified
Unlawful Activity; 18 U.S.C.
§ 2{(a): Aiding and Abetting;
18 U.S5.C. § 2(b): Causing An
Act To Be Done; 18 U.S.C.

§ 1001: False Statement;

18 U.S.C. § 1028A: Aggravated
Identity Theft]

ONE

. § 3711

At all times relevant to this Indictment:

1.

Defendant MARIA SANCHEY

(“SANCHEZ”) was employed as an

independent contractor by Online Financial Services, Inc.

CKP:ckp
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("OFS”) working as a loan consultant and real estate agent in
Lawndale, California, and elsewhere, within the Central District
of California. Defendant SANCHEZ was responsible for
filling out home loan applications for customers, verifying
information on the applications, and providing verification of
information on the applications to lenders to which these
applications were being submitted.

2. An unindicted co-conspirator (“UCC-1") was the sister of
defendant SANCHEZ.

3. Another unindicted co-conspirator (“UCC-27) was the
sister-in-law of UCC-1 and defendant SANCHEZ.

B. OBJECTS OF THE CONSPIRACY

5. Beginning in or about the year 2003 and continuing
through in or about the year 2007, in Los Angeles and San
Bernardino Counties, within the Central District of California,
and elsewhere, defendant SANCHEZ, and others known and unknown to
the Grand Jury, knowingly combined, conspired, and agreed to
commit the following offenses against the United States:

a. to commit wire fraud by using and causing to be
used interstate wires for the purpose of knowingly, with intent
to defraud, executing a scheme and artifice to defraud as to
material matters and to obtain money and property by means of
materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and
promises, and the concealment of material facts, in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343; and

b. Lo conduct financial transactions in criminally
derived property of a value greater than $10,000, which property,

in fact, was derived from specified unlawful activity, namely

2
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wire fraud, knowing that the funds involved represented the
proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, in violation of Title
18, United States Code, Section 1957.

C. MEANS BY WHICH THE OBJECTS_QF THE CONSPIRACY WERE TO BE

ACCOMPLISHED
6. The objects of the conspiracy were to be carried out,
in substance, as follows:

a. Defendant SANCHEZ would cause home loan
applications with false statements and forged signatures to be
submitted to lenders and others, knowing that the statements were
false and the signatures were forgeries, in order to obtain loans
for the purchase of residential properties.

b. Defendant SANCHEZ would falsify financial records
that she would send or cause to be sent to lenders and others, in
order to deceive the lenders into believing the false statements
in the home loan applications were true.

c. Defendant SANCHEZ would cause others to make
false statements to lenders and others, in order to deceive the
lenders into believing the false statements in the home loan
applications were true.

d. UCC-1 and UCC-2 would act as the nominee
purchasers and nominee owners of properties purchased through the
fraudulent scheme of defendant SANCHEZ.

e. Defendant SANCHEZ would cause lenders to fund the
loans based upon the fraudulent misrepresentations and material
omissions.

£. After defendant SANCHEZ and UCC-1 would purchase

properties with loans obtained by fraud, defendant SANCHEZ would

3
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sell the properties and deposit the proceeds into bank accounts.

g. UCC-1 would transfer to defendant SANCHEZ the
title of the properties obtained through the fraudulent scheme.

h. Defendant SANCHEZ would receive commissions and
fees for the purchase, sale, and refinance of the properties
obtained by defendant SANCHEZ and UCC-1 through the fraudulent
scheme. '

i. As a result of the fraudulent scheme of defendant
SANCHEZ and others known and unknoWn to the Grand Jury, as
described below, defendant SANCHEZ obtained by fraud and false
pretenses over $1,000,000 in loan proceeds from financial
institutions and mortgage lenders.

J. The wire instructions for all the loans described
below originated from escrow companies and title companies
located within the Central District of California.

D. OVERT ACTS

7. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to accomplish the
objects of the conspiracy, defendant SANCHEZ, and others known
and unknown to the Grand Jury, committed various overt acts,
within the Central District of California and elsewhere,
including but not limited to the following:

CHERRY LEE DRIVE PROPERTY

a. Defendant SANCHEZ, acting in her capacity as a
loan consultant, signed a Uniform Loan Application (“loan
application”), dated May 20, 2003, for a loan in the amount of
$232,900 for the purchase by UCC-2 of a property on Cherry Lee
Drive, El Monte, California (“Cherry Lee property”) .

b. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the loan application

4
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dated May 20, 2003, to state that UCC-2 received a gross monthly
base income of $7,000 from a business called “MODA” when, in
truth and in fact, as defendant SANCHEZ well knew, UCC-2 did not
receive $7000 in gross monthly base income from MODA.

c. In or around July 2003, defendant SANCHEZ caused
the loan application to be submitted to a lender, namely, Mylor
Financial Services (“"Mylor Financial”), located in West Covina,
California.

d. On or about July 18, 2003, defendant SANCHEZ and
UCC-2 caused a wire transfer of approximately $97,989 from a
Washington Mutual Bank account in the name of UCC-2, in Stockton,
California, through the PFunds Transfer Host Application at the
Federal Reserve Bank in East Rutherford, New Jersey (“Fed wire”),
to an escrow company located in Chino, California, within the
Central District of California, as a down payment for the Cherry
Lee property.

e, On or about July 24, 2003, UCC-2 purchased the
Cherry Lee property through a first mortgage loan that was
provided by Mylor Financial, of which approximately $220,906 was
sent through the Fed wire to an escrow company located in Chino,
California.

£. On or about July 28, 2003, as a result of the
purchase of the Cherry Lee property, defendant SANCHEZ received
approximately $15,923 in commissions and fees, which she
deposited into a bank account at Wells Fargo Bank, account number
XXXXXX6041,

DISNEY AVENUE PROPERTY

g. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the creation of two loan
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applications, dated October 7, 2004, and January 12, 2005,
respectively, for a loan secured by a first mortgage in the
amount of $350,000 for the purchase by defendant UCC-1 of a
property on Disney Avenue, Norwalk, California (“Disney Avenue”).

h. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the two loan applications
to state that UCC-1 worked for Personalized Business Services
("PBS”), located in Los Angeles, California, and that UCC-1
earned a gross monthly base income of $3,600 per month from PBS
when, in truth and in fact, as defendant SANCHEZ well knew, UCC-1
had not worked for PBS and had not earned a gross monthly base
income of $£3,600 from PRS.

i. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the two loan applications
to state that UCC-1 worked for a dentist, located in Los Angeles,
California, as a dental assistant for over seven yvears, and that
she earned a gross monthly base income of $5,300 from the dentist
when, in truth and in fact, as defendant SANCHEZ well knew, UCC-1
had not worked for the dentist, and had not earned a gross
monthly base income of $5,300 from the dentist.

j. Defendant SANCHEZ thereafter caused the two
applications with the false statements to be submitted to a
lender, namely, Ampro Mortgage Corporation dba WestWorks Mortgage
(“WestWorks Mortgage”) .

k. In or around January 2005, defendant SANCHEZ asked
an unindicted co-conspirator (“UCC-3"), who worked at the
dentist’'s office, to make false statements that UCC-1 worked at
the dentist’s office.

1. In or around January 2005, defehdant SANCHEZ asked

an unindicted co-conspirator (“UCC-4"), who worked at PBS, to

6
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make false statements that UCC-1 worked at the bookeeping office.

m. In or around 2005, defendant SANCHEZ made cash
payments to UCC-3 and UCC-4 in consideration for UCC-3 and UCC-4
making false statements about the employment history of UCC-1.

n. In or around January 2005, defendant SANCHEZ
caused to be submitted to WestWorks Mortgage forged and falsified
documents purporting to verify the employment and income history
of UCC-1.

o, On or about January 24, 2005, UCC-1 purchased the
Disney Avenue property with a loan secured by a first mortgage in
the amount of $350,000 from Westworks Mortgage, which was sent
through the Fed wire to a title company located within the
Central District of California.

D. On or about January 26, 2005, as a result of the
purchase of the Disney Avenue property, defendant SANCHEZ
received over $10,000 in commissions and fees, which she
deposited into a bank account at Wells Fargo Bank.

g. On or about March 3, 2005, using coded language in
a telephone conversation, defendant SANCHEZ informed an
unindicted co-conspirator (“UCC-5") that defendant SANCHEZ was
going to remove defendant UCC-1's name from the title of the
Disney Avenue property.

r. On or about May 19, 2005, a grant deed was
recorded with the Los Angeles County Recorder’s Office,
transferring title of the Disney Avenue property from UCC-1 to
defendant SANCHEZ,

s, On or about February 16, 2006, defendant SANCHEZ,

as a result of the sale of the Disney Avenue property, deposited

7
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a check in the amount $122,914 into a Wells Fargo Bank account in
the names of defendant SANCHEZ and UCC-1, number XXXXXXX041.

MCKINLEY AVENUE PROPERTY

t. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the creation of two loan
applications, dated December 8, 2004, and January 26, 2005,
respectively, for a loan secured by a first mortgage in the
amount of $440,000 from BC Bancorp for the purchase by UCC-1 of a
multi-dwelling property on McKinley Avenue, Paramount, California
(“McKinley property”). Defendant SANCHEZ forged and caused to be
forged the signature of a loan consultant on these applications.

u. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the creation of two
additional loan applications, dated December 8, 2004, and January
26, 2005, respectively, for a loan secured by a second mortgage
in the amount of $110,000 from BC Bancorp for the purchase by
UCC-1 of the McKinley property. Defendant SANCHEZ forged and
caused to be forged the signature of a loan consultant on the
application dated December 8, 2004.

V. Defendant SANCHEZ caused each of the loan
applications to state that UCC-1 worked for PBS for over three
and a half years, and that UCC-1 earned a monthly base income of
$3,600 from PBS, when, in truthland in fact, as defendant well
knew, UCC-1 had not worked for PBS and had not earned a monthly
base income of $3,600 from PBS.

W. Defendant SANCHEZ also caused each of the loan
applications to state that UCC-1 worked for a dentist, located in
Los Angeles, California, as a registered dental assistant for
over seven years, and that she earned a monthly base income of

$5,300 from the dentist when, in truth and in fact, as defendant

8
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SANCHEZ well knew, UCC-1 had not worked for the dentist as a
registered dental assistant for over seven years, and she had not
earned a monthly salary of $5,300 from the dentist.

X. In or around December 2004, defendant SANCHEZ
caused the applications with the false statements to be submitted
to a lender, namely, BC Bancorp.

Y. In or around January 2005, defendant SANCHEZ
caused UCC-3 and UCC-4 to provide false information about the
employment history and income of UCC-1.

z, On or about January 5, 2005, a letter was sent to
BC Bancorp with the purported signature of UCC-1 that falsely
stated that numerous cash deposits in the bank account of UCC-1
were from defendant SANCHEZ who “doesn’t speak English very well”
and “gets paid under the table.”
aa. On or about February 1, 2005, UCC-1 purchased the
McKinley property with a loan secured by a first mortgage in the
amount of $440,000 from BC Bancorp and a loan secured by a second
mortgage in the amount of $110,000 from BC Bancorp that were sent
through the Fed wire to a title company located within the
Central District of California.

bb. In or around February 2005, as a result of the
purchase of the McKinley property, defendant SANCHEZ received
over $10,000 in commissions and fees, which she deposited into a
bank account at Wells Fargo Bank.

¢Cc. On March 3, 2005, using coded language in a
telephone conversation, defendant SANCHEZ informed UCC-5 that
UCC-1 was worried about the name of UCC-1 being on the title of

the McKinley property. UCC-5 then instructed defendant SANCHEZ
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to change the name on the title of the McKinley property from the
name of UCC-1 to the name of another person.

dd. In or around February 2007, defendant UCC-1
received a check in the amount of $79,331 from the account of Las
Flores Escrow, l&cated in Downey, California, which represented
proceeds from the sale of the McKinley property, which was
deposited into a bank account of UCC-1 and defendant SANCHEZ at
Wells Fargo Bank, located in Torrance, California, on or about
February 4, 2007.

ee. In or around February 2007, defendant M. SANCHEZ
received a check in the amount $10,640 from a realty and lending
company, located in Santa Fe Springs, California, for commissions
and fees earned by defendant M. SANCHEZ for the sale of the
McKinley property, which was deposited into a bank account of
defendants B. SANCHEZ and M. SANCHEZ at Wells Fargo Bank, located
in Torrance, California, on or about February 7, 2007.

36th STREET PROPERTY - PURCHASE

£f. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the creation of a loan
application dated September 12, 2005, for a loan secured by a
first mortgage in the amount of $320,000 from WMC Mortgage
Corporation and another loan application for a loan secured by a
second mortgage in the amount of $80,000 from WMC Mortgage
Corporation in order for UCC-1 to purchase a property on E. 36th
Street, Los Angeles, California ("“36th Street property”) .
Defendant SANCHEZ forged and caused to be forged the signatures
of a loan consultant, J.M., on the applications. Defendant did
s0 without the authorization or knowledge of J.M.

gg. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the two loan applications

10
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to state that UCC-1 worked for PBS for over 8 years and earned a
gross monthly base income of $7,950 when, in truth and in fact,
as defendants SANCHEZ well knew, UCC-1 had not worked for PBS for
over 8 years and had not earned a gross monthly base income of
$7,950.

hh. Defendant SANCHEZ thereafter caused the two
applications to be submitted to a lender, namely, WMC Mortgage
Corporation.

ii. On or about September 23, 2005, UCC-1 purchased
the 36th Street property with a loan secured by a first mortgage
in the amount of $320,000 and a second mortgage in the amount of
$80,000 from WMC Mortgage Corporation. The monies were sent
through the Fed wire to a title company located within the
Central District of California.

JJ. In or around September 2005, as a result of the
purchase of the 36th Street property, defendant SANCHEZ received
commissions and fees, which she deposited into a bank account at
Wells Fargo Bank.

kk. On or about June 28, 2007, a grant deed was
recorded with the Los Angeles County Recorder’s Office,
transferring title of the 36 Street property from UCC-1 to
defendant SANCHEZ.

36th STREET PROPERTY - FIRST ATTEMPTED REFINANCING

1l. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the creation of a loan
application dated October 25, 2006, for a refinancing mortgage
loan in the amount of $532,000 from WMC Mortgage Corporation,
with herself as the borrower, secured by the 36th Street

property. Defendant SANCHEZ forged and caused to be forged the

11
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signature of a real estate broker, S.T., on the application.
Defendant did so without the authorization or knowledge of S.T.

mm. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the loan application to
state that defendant SANCHEZ worked as a real estate agent for
Locke Realty & Lending for over five years, and that defendant
SANCHEZ earned a monthly base income of $16,351.71 from Locke
Realty & Lending, when, in truth and in fact, as defendant well
knew, defendant SANCHEZ had not worked for Locke Realty & Lending
for more than five years and had not earned a monthly base income
of $16,351.71 from there.

nn. In suppert of the loan application, on October 25,
2006, defendant, using an Equifax account, requested a credit
check on herself through an Internet-accessible computer.
Defendant electronically sent her request from a computer in Los
Angeles County, California, to an Equifax database located in
Gibbsgsboro, New Jersey.

36th STREET PROPERTY - SECOND ATTEMPTED REFINANCING

0o. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the creation of two
subsequent loan applications, both dated December 12, 2006, for
two refinancing mortgage loans in the amoﬁnt of $425,600 and
$106,400 from WMC Mortgage Corporation, with herself and UCC-1 as
co-borrowers, secured by the 36th Street property. Defendant
SANCHEZ forged and caused to be forged the signature of a real
estate broker, S.T., on the application. Defendant SANCHEZ did
so without the authorization or knowledge of S.T.

pp. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the first refinancing
loan application to state that defendant SANCHEZ worked as a real

estate agent for Locke Realty & Lending for over five years, and

12
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that defendant SANCHEZ earned a monthly base income of $7,575.00
from Locke Realty & Lending, when, in truth and in fact, as
defendant SANCHEZ well knew, defendant SANCHEZ had not worked for
Locke Realty & Lending for more than five years and had not
earned a monthly base income of $7,575.00 from there.

qq. Defendant SANCHEZ caused the second refinancing
loan application to state that UCC-1 worked at Del Rio
Convalescent Center and earned a monthly base income of $4,500
from the Del Rio Convalescent Center, when, in truth and in fact,
as defendant SANCHEZ well knew, UCC-1 did not earn a monthly base
income of $4,500 from there.

rr. 1In support of the loan application, on December
12, 2006, defendant SANCHEZ, using an Equifax account, requested
a credit check on UCC-1 through an Internet-accessible computer.
Defendant SANCHEZ electronically sent her request from a computer
in Los Angeles County, California, to an Equifax database located

in Gibbsboro, New Jersey.

13
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COUNTS TWO THRQUGH EIGHT
[18 U.S.C. §§ 1343, 2{a) and (b)]
1. Paragraphs 1 through 3, 6 and 7, set forth in Count One
of this Second Superseding Indictment, are realleged and
incorporated into these counts as though fully set forth herein.

2. Beginning in or about the year 2003 and continuing
through in or about the year 2007, in Los Angeles and San
Bernardino Counties, within the Central Distriect of California,
and elsewhere, defendant MARIA SANCHEZ (“SANCHEZ”), and others
known and unknown to the Grand Jury, knowingly and with intent to
defraud, devised, participated in, and carried out a scheme and
artifice to defraud financial institutions and mortgage lenders
as to material matters, and to obtain money and property from
financial institutions and mortgage lenders by means of
materially false and fraudulent pretenses, represéntations, and
promises, and the concealment of material facts.

3. On or about the dates get forth below, within the
Central District of California, and elsewhere, fof the purpose of
executing the above-described scheme to defraud, defendant
SANCHEZ, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury,
willfully caused and aided and abetted the transmission of the
following items by means of wire communication in interstate

commerce:

/17

14
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CQUNT DATE

TWO 7-18-03
THREE 7-24-03
FOUR 1-31-05
FIVE 1-31-05
SIX 9-22-05

TRANSMISSION

Wire transfer from the Washington Mutual Bank
account, in Stockton, California, in the name
of UCC-2, account number XXX-XXX894-8,
through the Funds Transfer Host Application
at the Federal Reserve Bank in East
Rutherford, New Jersey, to an account in the
name of Commonwealth Land Title Company in
Chino, California, at Union Bank of
California in Los Angeles, California, in the
sum of $97,989.

Wire transfer from the Comerica Bank account,
in San Jose, California, in the name of
Southland Title Corporation account number
XXXXXX-8240, through the Funds Transfer Host
Application at the Federal Reserve Bank in
East Rutherford, New Jersey, to an account in
the name of Commonwealth Land Title Company,
in Chino, California, at Union Bank of
California in Los Angeles, California, in the
sum of $220, 906.

Wire transfer from the Bank One NA Chicago
account, in Chicago, Illinois, in the name of
BC Bancorp through the Funds Transfer Host
Application at the Federal Reserve Bank in
East Rutherford, New Jersey, to Comerica Bank
in San Jose, California, to an account in the
name of Diversified Title and Escrow Services
(located in E1 Monte, California), account
number XXX5441, in the sum of $443,237.

Wire transfer from the Bank One NA Chicago
account, in Chicago, Illinois, in the name of
BC Bancorp, through the Funds Transfer Host
Application at the Federal Reserve Bank in
East Rutherford, New Jersey, to Comerica Bank
located in San Jose, California, to an
account in the name of Diversified Title and
Escrow Services (located in E1 Monte,
California), account number XXX5441, in the
sum of $109,615.

Wire transfer from the Bank of New York
account, in New York, New York, in the name
of WMC Mortgage Corporation, through the
Funds Transfer Host Application at the
Federal Reserve Bank in East Rutherford, New
Jersey, to Comerica Bank in San Jose,
California, to an account in the name of 0ld
Republic Title Company (located in Ontario,
California), account number XXX3425, in the
sum of $320,170.

15
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SEVEN 10-25-06 Electronic request, sent through the
Internet, from a computer in Los Angeles
County, California to a database operated by
Equifax Mortgage Solutions in Gibbsboro, New
Jersey, for credit information as to
defendant SANCHEZ, using Equifax account
number XXXXX67895.

16
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COUNTS EIGHT THROUGH TWELVE
(18 U.S.C. §§ 1957, 2(b)]

1. Paragraphs 1 through 3, 6 and 7, set forth in Count One,
are realleged and incorporated into these counts as though fully
set forth herein.

2. On or about the dates set forth below, in Los Angeles
County, in ﬁhe Central District of California, and elsewhere,

defendant MARIA SANCHEZ, knowing that the funds involved

represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity,

conducted and caused others to conduct the following monetary

transactions in criminally derived property of a value greater

than $10,000, which property was derived from specified unlawful

activity, namely wire fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343:

COUNT DATE MONETARY TRANSACTION

EIGHT 7-28-03 Deposit of Online Financial Services, Inc.
check in the sum of $15,934 made payabkle to
defendant M. SANCHEZ into Wells Fargo Bank
account number XXXXXX6041.

NINE 2-04-05 Deposit of two Online Financial Services,
Inc. checks in the sums of $7,933 and $8,800
made payable to defendant M. SANCHEZ into
Wells Fargo Bank account number XXXXXX6041,

TEN 3-16-06 Deposit of Transunion Cerritos Escrow Trust
Account check in the sum of $122,914 made
payable to defendant M. SANCHEZ into Wells
Fargo Bank account number XXXXXX6041.

ELEVEN 2-04-07 Deposit of Las Flores Escrow, Inc. check in
the sum of $79,331 made payable to defendant
B. SANCHEZ into Wells Fargo Bank account
number XXXXXXXXXXXXXX6041.

TWELVE 2-07-07 Deposit of Locke Realty and Lending check in
the sum of $10,640 made payable to defendant
M. SANCHEZ into Wells Fargo Bank account
number XXXXXXXXXXXXXX6041.

17
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COUNT THIRTEEN
[18 U.S.C. § 1028A]

Beginning on or about September 12, 2005, and continuing to
on or about September 22, 2005, in Los Angeles County, within the
Central District of California, defendant MARIA SANCHEZ knowingly
transferred, possessed, and used, without lawful authority, a
means of identification of another person, that is, the signature
and name of individual J.M., during and in relation to wire
fraud, a felony violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 1343, as charged in Count Six of the Second Superseding

Indictment.

18
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COUNT FOURTEEN
[18 U.S.C. § 1028A4]

On or about October 25, 2006, in Los Angeles County, within
the Central District of California, defendant MARIA SANCHEZ
knowingly transferred, possessed, and used, without lawful
authority, a means of identification of another person, that is,
the signature and name of individual S.T., during and in relation
to wire fraud, a felony violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1343, as charged in Count Seven of the Second

Superseding Indictment.
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COUNT FIFTEEN
[18 U.S.C. § 1001]

On or about December 6, 2005, in Los Angeles County, within
the Central District of California, in a matter within the
jurisdiction of the executive branch of the Government of the
United States, defendant MARIA SANCHEZ knowingly and willfully
made a materially false statement to the United States Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”), in that defendant MARTA SANCHEZ stated
to special agents of the Internal Revenue Service that her
sister-in-law, Martha Gonzalez, worked as an assistant manager at
a clothing store called “Moda” during the year 2003, and that
Martha Gonzalez earned approximately $3,500 from such employment,
when, in fact, as defendant MARTA SANCHEZ well knew, Martha
Gonzalez did not work at Moda in the vear 2003 and did not earn

$3,500 from being employed at Moda during that time.
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